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The Judge Palmer House is located on a large irregular lot backing unto the Napa River
not far from the original crossing over the Napa River which was a ford, used into the
1880s. Across the River was the Palmer Lumber Yard and nearby, to the east on Lincoln
Avenue, were the Palmer Stables; both are now gone. The Palmer House was one of the
first to be built "in this part of town" and was unusually formal and on a larger scale
than most residences then and since in Calistoga. Facing Cedar Street, the Palmer
House still has several of the elms surrounding it which gave it the name "The Elms."

The house, of three stories, was built in the Second Empire "rowhouse" style with a
square symmetrical shape and few windows on the sides. A concave mansard roof with
decorative shingles carries a single dormer on each side. Between 1896 and-1901 a

one story-bay window was added to the west side and a two story square bay with a
mansard roof added to the east side . Original to the early house was an extension to
the rear which had a wrap-around porch on each side. Between 1910 and 1924 the porches
were enclosed to form a kitchen.

Decorative shingles of the mansard roof were copied in the two story bay addition as were
the modillion brackets of the cornice with their drop pendants. Of frame with shiplap
siding, the house has corner quoins of wood. The gabled dormer windows have senii-
circular arched windows. Windows of the first and second stories are narrow double-hung
one-over-one sash. Window surrounds are shouldered with a dentil pattern beneath shelf
window hoods. A recessed entryway is to one side with a transom. Doors are double with
glass upper panels. A porch extends the length of the front of the house supported by
slender columns with decorative pierced and curved brackets. There is a second story
balustrade with turned balusters. The brick porch foundation was part of recent renovation
as is the brick and iron fence bordering the property on Cedar Street. The early carriage
house complex to the east was altered and converted to a garage area. The iron cresting
on the roof disappeared long ago.



) SIGNIFICANCE

PERIOD AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE -- CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW
-PREHISTORIC ~ _ARCHEULOGY-PREHISTORIC ~ _COMMUNITY PLANNING __LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE  __RELIGION
-1400-1499 —ARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC —CONSERVATION —LAW _.SCIENCE

-1500-1598 —AGRICULTURE __ECONOMICS __LITERATURE ) —SCULPTURE

-1600-1699 X ARCHITECTURE —EDUCATION —MILITARY —SOCIAL/HUMANITARIAN
-1700-1799 _ART —__ENGINEERING _—_Music —_THEATER

$1800-1899 _—COMMERCE —EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT  __PHILOSOPHY —TRANSPORTATION
-1900- —COMMUNICATIONS —_INDUSTRY ' ) __POLITICS/GOVERNMENT __OTHER (SPECIFY)

o~ —INVENTION
S5PECIFIC DATES ]1873-74 BUILDER/ARCHITECT Buiider: Aughétﬁs ‘C. Palmer

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Judge Augustus C. Palmer, Calistoga’'s first judge, constructed this Second Empire
style residence for himself in 1873-74. One of the earliest residences in the formal
Second Empire style in Napa County, the Palmer House is the only example of the
style in wood 'in Calistoga and reflects the early prominence of its owner-builder. In
1886, a unique complement to the Palmer House, the Francis House, would be built
in the Second Empire style in stone. The two residences, the only architect designed
houses remaining of this era, are within a few blocks of each other and are indicative
of the prosperity of the 1870s and 1880s in Calistoga.

Augustus C. Palmer was an early arrival in Calistoga in the 1860s. Following the boom
and bust cycles of the late 19th century he filed for bankruptcy in 1868, visited France
in 1870 and returning in the early 1870s established a large lumber yard in Calistoga
across the Napa River from his residence. His visit to France no doubt influenced

his choice of design; whether plans for the house were drawn in France or taken from

a pattern book is uncertain. In a town of frame houses, his lumber yard was a m&jor
economic force and, in addition, he had the Palmer Stables on Lincoln Avenue,

which served the Lakeport Stage Line. His luniber interests undoubtedly contributed

to the excellent craftsmanship in detailing of the residence and he is known to have
completed the interior carpentry himself. A particularly fine three story spiral
staircase remains in the house. A somewhat mysterious man, A.C. Palmer sold out
his interests in Calistoga, including his residence, in 1880, and disappeared, to
reappear in Hawaii two years later. He briefly returned to Calistoga in the early 1900s
and disappeared once again.

In later years the residence was purchased by Dr. A.M. Gardner(1885), a local
physician; by Mary H. Francis (1895); by Oscar Fitch (1902) and by Charles Crouch
(1909). The Hughes acquired the Palmer House in recent years, renovating the interior
and restoring the exterior to its early 1900s appearance.

The Judge Palmer House, well-known in the late 19th century for its ornamental gardens
and elms remains within a neighborhood of late 19th century cottages. Although the
Palmer House is adjacent to commercial Lincoln Avenue, the transition from commercia.
to residential is abrupt and the neighborhood, one of the earliest in Calistoga, retains
its early character.
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